



Journal of the House

State of Indiana

119th General Assembly

First Regular Session

Thirty-fifth Day

Tuesday Afternoon

March 24, 2015

The invocation was offered by Reverend Robert Lee of 2nd Missionary Baptist Church in Kokomo, a guest of Representative Michael H. Karickhoff.

The House convened at 1:30 p.m. with Speaker Brian C. Bosma in the Chair.

The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Representative Michael H. Karickhoff.

The Speaker ordered the roll of the House to be called:

Arnold	Klinker
Austin	Koch
Aylesworth	Lawson
Bacon	Lehe
Baird	Lehman
Bartlett	Leonard
Bauer	Lucas
Behning	Macer
Beumer	Mahan
Borders	Mayfield
Braun	McMillin
C. Brown	McNamara
T. Brown	D. Miller
Burton	Moed
Carbaugh	Morris
Cherry	Morrison
Clere	Moseley
Cook	Negele
Cox	Niezgodski
Culver	Nisly
Davisson	Ober
DeLaney	Olthoff
Dermody	Pelath
DeVon	Pierce
Dvorak	Porter
Eberhart	Price
Errington	Pryor
Fine	Rhoads
Forestal	Richardson
Friend	Riecken
Frizzell	Saunders
Frye	Schaibley
GiaQuinta	Shackleford
Goodin	Slager
Gutwein	Smaltz
Hale	M. Smith
Hamm	V. Smith
Harman	Soliday
Harris †	Speedy
Heaton	Stemler
Huston	Steuerwald
Judy	Sullivan
Karickhoff	Summers
Kersey	Thompson
Kirchhofer	Torr

Truitt	Wolkins
Ubelhor	Wright
VanNatter	Zent
Washburne	Ziemke
Wesco	Mr. Speaker

Roll Call 316: 99 present; 0 excused. The Speaker announced a quorum in attendance. [NOTE: □ indicates those who were excused.]

† The Speaker announced the death of Representative Earl Harris. The House stood for a moment of silence.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING

House Concurrent Resolution 50

Representatives Burton, Pryor and Moed introduced House Concurrent Resolution 50:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION congratulating the Indianapolis Homeschool Wildcats.

Whereas, The Indianapolis Homeschool Wildcats are the 2015 Indiana Christian Basketball Alliance (ICBA) Varsity Boys State Tournament champions;

Whereas, The Wildcats earned the title by defeating the Northwest Warriors by a score of 86 to 77 on February 21, 2015, in Greenwood;

Whereas, With this year's championship the Wildcats became only the second team in the Indiana Christian Basketball Alliance tournament's 19 year history to win multiple state titles;

Whereas, The Wildcats were led by junior guard Josiah Oetjen, who scored 36 points and had four assists;

Whereas, Josiah also played a major role in winning the semifinal game in which he scored 28 points and had nine steals;

Whereas, Josiah Oetjen was named conference MVP while he and twin brother Noah Oetjen were named 1st Team All-Conference and placed on the conference all-defensive team;

Whereas, Josiah was named to the 1st Team Homeschool All-American team and Noah was named to the 2nd Team Homeschool All-American team;

Whereas, In addition to the state championship, the Wildcats became just the second Indiana team in National Christian Homeschool Basketball Championship (NCHBC) tournament history to make the national home school final four before losing to number-one ranked and three-time national title winner Oklahoma City;

Whereas, According to MaxPreps.com, the CBS high school sports web site, the Wildcats rank 15th in scoring among all

public, private, and homeschool teams in the country and second in scoring of all high school teams in Indiana, and they have scored 100 or more points six times this season;

Whereas, In addition to winning the ICBA state title, the Wildcats also won the Midwest Christian Homeschool Conference championship, becoming the first team in conference history to go undefeated through the regular season and the tournament;

Whereas, The Wildcats have also defeated six IHSAA member schools this season - Culver Academy, Gary 21st Century, Indiana Math & Science, Indianapolis Arlington, Indianapolis Manual, and Indianapolis Washington; and

Whereas, Teamwork and an inner spirit to win contributed enormously to the Wildcats achieving a perfect season capped off by a state championship: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the Senate concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly congratulates the Indianapolis Homeschool Wildcats basketball team on the occasion of its 2015 Indiana Christian Basketball Alliance State Boys Basketball Tournament championship and wishes the team members and coaches continued success in all their future endeavors.

SECTION 2. That the Principal Clerk of the House of Representatives transmit a copy of this resolution to team members Noah Oetjen, Ben Glantz, Aaron Gilmer, Hiatt Dunlap, Carter Hughes, Tommy Mangan, Seth Armstrong, Noah Black, Spencer Schriener, Josiah Oetjen, John Owen, and Noah Clark; Head Coach Jeremy Bialek; Assistant Coaches Brad Mitchell, Pat Shook, and Mark Smallwood; and Reserve Coach Dean Brewer.

The resolution was read a first time and adopted by voice vote. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the resolution. Senate sponsor: Senator Waltz.

House Resolution 32

Representatives Mahan, Aylesworth, Beumer, Braun, C. Brown, DeLaney, Dermody, Errington, GiaQuinta, Goodin, Hale, Judy, Karickhoff, Kirchhofer, Klinker, Niezgodski, Olthoff, Pelath, Pierce, Porter, Pryor, M. Smith, V. Smith, Washburne and Wright introduced House Resolution 32:

A HOUSE RESOLUTION recognizing and honoring Indiana's rich African American heritage and history.

Whereas, Indiana is rich in African American heritage and history;

Whereas, As a neighbor of Kentucky, Indiana was strategically located for runaway slaves seeking freedom and safe passage to the North;

Whereas, Popular understanding of Indiana black history normally focuses on post-Civil War African American migration to cities in the North but fails to reveal the stories of free blacks and formerly enslaved people who settled here before Indiana was a state;

Whereas, These untold stories have the potential to add a level of understanding to our knowledge of black heritage and history;

Whereas, Indiana Landmarks, through its African American Landmarks Committee, has worked for several years to preserve and protect significant African American sites and structures;

Whereas, The Indiana Historical Society recently spearheaded a statewide data collection effort to provide a comprehensive knowledge base of Indiana's early African American settlers;

Whereas, Currently there are several places where Hoosiers can further their knowledge of our state's African American heritage and history;

Whereas, The Indiana African American Heritage Trail was founded in 2004 by Maxine F. Brown and marks sites and individuals instrumental in the history of African Americans in Southern Indiana from the early 1800s to the late 1900s;

Whereas, A prototype for the trail spans Clark, Floyd, Harrison, Jefferson, Gibson, and Orange counties with the goal to extend the trail throughout all 92 counties;

Whereas, The Indiana African American Heritage Trail will help to promote cultural heritage tourism for tourists and Indiana residents alike to understand more completely the history of each African American community in Indiana;

Whereas, In addition to the Indiana African American Heritage Trail, the Indiana Historical Bureau and the Indiana Historical Society are repositories that maintain significant histories of the African American history of our state;

Whereas, Black entrepreneurs can contribute to a more thorough understanding of black history and heritage in Indiana through the establishment of tourism-related businesses and by promoting cultural heritage tourism;

Whereas, All Hoosiers should be aware of the early history of African Americans in Indiana; and

Whereas, Black Americans reflect a legacy of courage and dedication that has helped to guide Indiana's success and prosperity: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana House of Representatives wishes to preserve and honor our rich African American heritage and history.

SECTION 2. That the Principal Clerk of the House of Representatives transmit copies of this resolution to Maxine Brown-Southern, Indiana Minority Enterprise Initiative, Inc.

The resolution was read a first time and adopted by voice vote.

Senate Concurrent Resolution 19

The Speaker handed down Senate Concurrent Resolution 19, sponsored by Representative McNamara:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION honoring the Indiana Main Street program for thirty years of service to Indiana cities and towns.

Whereas, The National Main Street Center was established by the National Trust for Historic Preservation in 1980;

Whereas, Since its inception, the center has grown to become the largest full-service commercial district revitalization organization in the nation;

Whereas, Recognizing the crucial role the downtown business district plays in the overall image of a community, the Indiana General Assembly established the Indiana Main Street program in 1985 to encourage the economic development, redevelopment, and improvement of downtown areas in Indiana cities and towns;

Whereas, Indiana Main Street is advised by the Main Street Advisory Council, a public/private advisory board appointed by Lieutenant Governor Sue Ellspermann;

Whereas, Indiana Main Street emphasizes building local capacity and self-sufficiency through technical assistance and encourages local businesses, residents, and leaders to get involved in community projects;

Whereas, In order to address all the needs of the community, Indiana Main Street uses the National Main Street Center's four point approach for improving downtown areas: design, organization, promotion, and economic restructuring;

Whereas, The National Main Street revitalization project has proven to be one of the most successful economic development strategies in America;

Whereas, Research has shown that, on a national average, for every dollar spent to operate a local Main Street program, approximately thirty-three dollars has been reinvested in the community;

Whereas, Numerous local communities throughout Indiana have benefitted from the Indiana Main Street program's services to revitalize downtown communities over the past thirty years, with 121 communities currently participating; and

Whereas, The Indiana General Assembly expresses sincere gratitude to the Indiana Main Street program for its ongoing efforts to renew downtown business districts throughout Indiana: Therefore,

*Be it resolved by the Senate
of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana,
the House of Representatives concurring:*

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly commends the Indiana Main Street program, under the Office of Community and Rural Affairs, and the Main Street Advisory Council, as well as all of the businesses and community members that have participated in local programs, for their efforts to improve community image.

SECTION 2. That the Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit copies of this Resolution to Lieutenant Governor Sue Ellspermann; Bill Konyha, Executive Director of the Office of Community and Rural Affairs; Shae Kmickewycz, Program Director for Indiana Main Street; members of the Main Street Advisory Council: Mark Dollase, Todd Thackeray, Mayor Robert Hurst, Jeremy Sowders, and Dennis Carson; and former First Lady Judy O'Bannon.

The resolution was read a first time and adopted by voice vote. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the resolution.

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES

COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Government and Regulatory Reform, to which was referred Senate Bill 10, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the House with the recommendation that said bill do pass.

(Reference is to SB 10 as printed January 16, 2015.)

Committee Vote: Yeas 8, Nays 0.

MAHAN, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Employment, Labor and Pensions, to which was referred Senate Bill 283, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same

back to the House with the recommendation that said bill do pass.

(Reference is to SB 283 as printed February 13, 2015.)

Committee Vote: Yeas 9, Nays 0.

GUTWEIN, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Government and Regulatory Reform, to which was referred Senate Bill 369, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the House with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, between the enacting clause and line 1, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 1. IC 5-3-1-0.2 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 0.2. As used in this section, "locality newspaper" means a publication that meets all of the following requirements:**

- (1) Is regularly issued at least one (1) time per week.**
- (2) Contains in each issue news of general or community interest, community notices, or editorial commentary by different authors.**
- (3) Has, in more than one-half (1/2) of its issues published during the previous twelve (12) month period, not more than seventy-five percent (75%) advertising content.**
- (4) Has been published continuously for at least three (3) years.**
- (5) Has the ability to add subscribers to its distribution list. The locality newspaper must add any person to its distribution list:**
 - (A) who requests to be added as a new subscriber; and**
 - (B) whose mailing address is within the political subdivision in which the locality newspaper generally circulates.**
- (6) Is a publication of general circulation in the political subdivision that is responsible for the publication of notice.**
- (7) Is circulated by United States mail, free of charge, to addresses that are located within the political subdivision responsible for the publication of notice.**
- (8) Has its circulation verified by an annual independent audit of the publication.**
- (9) Contains advertisements from numerous unrelated advertisers in each issue.**
- (10) Is not owned by, or under the control of, the owners or lessees of a shopping center, a merchant's association, or a business that sells property or services (other than advertising) whose advertisements for their sales of property or services constitute the predominant advertising in the publication.**
- (11) Has continuity as to title and general nature of content from issue to issue.**
- (12) Does not constitute a book, either singly or when successive issues are put together.**
- (13) Has a known office location in the county in which the locality newspaper is published.**

SECTION 2. IC 5-3-1-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L. 141-2009, SECTION 1, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) The cost of all public notice advertising which any elected or appointed public official or governmental agency is required by law to have published, or orders published, for which the compensation to the newspapers, **locality newspapers**, or qualified publications publishing such advertising is drawn from and is the ultimate obligation of the public treasury of the governmental unit

concerned with the advertising shall be charged to and collected from the proper fund of the public treasury and paid over to the newspapers, **locality newspapers**, or qualified publications publishing such advertising, after proof of publication and claim for payment has been filed.

(b) The basic charges for publishing public notice advertising shall be by the line and shall be computed based on a square of two hundred and fifty (250) ems at the following rates:

(1) Before January 1, 1996, three dollars and thirty cents (\$3.30) per square for the first insertion in newspapers or qualified publications plus one dollar and sixty-five cents (\$1.65) per square for each additional insertion in newspapers, or qualified publications.

(2) After December 31, 1995, and before December 31, 2005, a newspaper, or qualified publication may, effective January 1 of any year, increase the basic charges by five percent (5%) more than the basic charges that were in effect during the previous year. However, the basic charges for the first insertion of a public notice in a newspaper, or qualified publication may not exceed the lowest classified advertising rate charged to advertisers by the newspaper, or qualified publication for comparable use of the same amount of space for other purposes.

(3) After December 31, 2009, **and before January 1, 2016**, a newspaper or qualified publication may, effective January 1 of any year, increase the basic charges by not more than two and three-quarters percent (2.75%) more than the basic charges that were in effect during the previous year. However, the basic charges for the first insertion of a public notice in a newspaper or qualified publication may not exceed the lowest classified advertising rate charged to advertisers by the newspaper or qualified publication for comparable use of the same amount of space for other purposes and must include all multiple insertion discounts extended to the newspaper's other advertisers.

(4) After December 31, 2015, a newspaper, locality newspaper, or qualified publication may, effective January 1 of any year, increase the basic charges by not more than two and seventy-five hundredths percent (2.75%) more than the basic charges that were in effect during the previous year. However, the basic charges for the first insertion of a public notice in a newspaper, locality newspaper, or qualified publication may not exceed the lowest classified advertising rate charged to advertisers by the newspaper, locality newspaper, or qualified publication for comparable use of the same amount of space for other purposes and must include all multiple insertion discounts extended to the newspaper's, locality newspaper's, or qualified publication's other advertisers.

An additional charge of fifty percent (50%) shall be allowed for the publication of all public notice advertising containing rule or tabular work.

(c) All public notice advertisements shall be set in solid type that is at least 7 point type, without any leads or other devices for increasing space. All public notice advertisements shall be headed by not more than two (2) lines, neither of which shall total more than four (4) solid lines of the type in which the body of the advertisement is set. Public notice advertisements may be submitted by an appointed or elected official or a governmental agency to a newspaper, **locality newspaper**, or qualified publication in electronic form, if the newspaper, **locality newspaper**, or qualified publication is equipped to accept information in compatible electronic form.

(d) Each newspaper, **locality newspaper**, or qualified publication publishing public notice advertising shall submit proof of publication and claim for payment in duplicate on each public notice advertisement published. For each additional proof

of publication required by a public official, a charge of one dollar (\$1) per copy shall be allowed each newspaper, **locality newspaper**, or qualified publication furnishing proof of publication.

(e) The circulation of a newspaper, **locality newspaper**, or qualified publication is determined as follows:

(1) For a newspaper, by the circulation stated on line 10.C. (Total Paid and/or Requested Circulation of Single Issue Published Nearest to Filing Date) of the Statement of Ownership, Management and Circulation required by 39 U.S.C. 3685 that was filed during the previous year.

(2) For a locality newspaper, by a verified affidavit filed with each agency, department, or office of the political subdivision that has public notices the locality newspaper wants to publish. The affidavit must:

(A) be filed with the agency, department, or office of the political subdivision before January 1 of each year; and

(B) attest to the circulation of the locality newspaper for the issue published nearest to October 1 of the previous year, as determined by an independent audit of the locality newspaper performed for the previous year.

~~(2)~~ **(3) For a qualified publication, by a verified affidavit filed with each governmental agency that has public notices the qualified publication wants to publish. The affidavit must:**

(A) be filed with the governmental agency before January 1 of each year; and

(B) attest to the circulation of the qualified publication for the issue published nearest to October 1 of the previous year.

SECTION 3. IC 5-3-1-1.5, AS ADDED BY P.L.141-2009, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1.5. (a) This section applies ~~after June 30, 2009~~; to a notice that must be published in accordance with this chapter.

(b) If a newspaper **or locality newspaper** maintains an Internet web site, a notice that is published in the newspaper **or locality newspaper** must also be posted on the ~~newspaper's~~ web site **of the newspaper or locality newspaper**. The notice must appear on the web site on the same day the notice appears in the newspaper **or locality newspaper**.

(c) The state board of accounts shall develop a standard form for notices posted on a newspaper's **or locality newspaper's** Internet web site.

(d) A newspaper **or locality newspaper** may not charge a fee for posting a notice on the newspaper's **or locality newspaper's** Internet web site under this section.

SECTION 4. IC 5-3-1-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.183-2014, SECTION 1, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) This section applies only when notice of an event is required to be given by publication in accordance with this chapter.

(b) If the event is a public hearing or meeting concerning any matter not specifically mentioned in subsection (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), or (h) notice shall be published one (1) time, at least ten (10) days before the date of the hearing or meeting.

(c) If the event is an election, notice shall be published one (1) time, at least ten (10) days before the date of the election.

(d) If the event is a sale of bonds, notes, or warrants, notice shall be published two (2) times, at least one (1) week apart, with:

(1) the first publication made at least fifteen (15) days before the date of the sale; and

(2) the second publication made at least three (3) days before the date of the sale.

(e) If the event is the receiving of bids, notice shall be published two (2) times, at least one (1) week apart, with the second publication made at least seven (7) days before the date

the bids will be received.

(f) If the event is the establishment of a cumulative or sinking fund, notice of the proposal and of the public hearing that is required to be held by the political subdivision shall be published two (2) times, at least one (1) week apart, with the second publication made at least three (3) days before the date of the hearing.

(g) If the event is the submission of a proposal adopted by a political subdivision for a cumulative or sinking fund for the approval of the department of local government finance, the notice of the submission shall be published one (1) time. The political subdivision shall publish the notice when directed to do so by the department of local government finance.

(h) If the event is the required publication of an ordinance, notice of the passage of the ordinance shall be published one (1) time within thirty (30) days after the passage of the ordinance.

(i) If the event is one about which notice is required to be published after the event, notice shall be published one (1) time within thirty (30) days after the date of the event.

(j) If the event is anything else, notice shall be published two (2) times, at least one (1) week apart, with the second publication made at least three (3) days before the event.

(k) If any officer charged with the duty of publishing any notice required by law is unable to procure ~~advertisement:~~

publication of the notice:

(1) at the price fixed by law;

(2) because ~~the newspaper all:~~

(A) newspapers; and

(B) locality newspapers;

~~refuses that are qualified to publish the notice refuse to publish the advertisement; notice; or~~

(3) because ~~the newspaper refuses newspapers or locality newspapers referred to in subdivision (2) refuse to post the advertisement notice on the newspaper's newspapers' or locality newspapers' Internet web site (if required under section 1.5 of this chapter);~~

it is sufficient for the officer to post printed notices in three (3) prominent places in the political subdivision, instead of publication of the notice in newspapers **or locality newspapers** and on an Internet web site (if required under section 1.5 of this chapter).

~~(l) If a notice of budget estimates for a political subdivision is published as required in IC 6-1-1-17-3, and the published notice contains an error due to the fault of a newspaper, the notice as presented for publication is a valid notice under this chapter. This subsection expires January 1, 2015.~~

~~(m) Notwithstanding subsection (j), if a notice of budget estimates for a political subdivision is published as required in IC 6-1-1-17-3, and if the notice is not published at least ten (10) days before the date fixed for the public hearing on the budget estimate due to the fault of a newspaper, the notice is a valid notice under this chapter if it is published one (1) time at least three (3) days before the hearing. This subsection expires January 1, 2015.~~

SECTION 5. IC 5-3-1-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.141-2009, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) Whenever officers of a political subdivision are required to publish a notice affecting the political subdivision, they shall publish the notice in two (2) newspapers published in the political subdivision.

(b) This subsection applies to notices published by county officers. If there is only one (1) newspaper published in the county, then publication in that newspaper alone is sufficient.

(c) This subsection applies to notices published by city, town, or school corporation officers. If there is only one (1) newspaper published in the municipality or school corporation, then publication in that newspaper alone is sufficient. If no newspaper is published in the municipality or school corporation, then publication **of the notice** shall be made in **one (1) of the following:**

(1) A locality newspaper that circulates within the municipality or school corporation.

(2) A newspaper published in the county in which the municipality or school corporation is located and that circulates within the municipality or school corporation.

(d) This subsection applies to notices published by officers of political subdivisions not covered by subsection (a) or (b). If there is only one (1) newspaper published in the political subdivision, then the notice shall be published in that newspaper. If no newspaper is published in the political subdivision, then publication **of the notice** shall be made in **one (1) of the following:**

(1) A locality newspaper that circulates within the municipality or school corporation.

(2) A newspaper published in the county and that circulates within the political subdivision.

(e) This subsection applies to a political subdivision, including a city, town, or school corporation. Notwithstanding any other law, if a political subdivision has territory in more than one (1) county, public notices that are required by law or ordered to be published must be given as follows:

(1) By publication in two (2) newspapers, published within the boundaries of the political subdivision.

(2) If only one (1) newspaper is published within the boundaries of the political subdivision, by publication **of the notice** in that newspaper and **in one (1) of the following:**

(A) A locality newspaper that circulates within the political subdivision.

(B) In some other another newspaper:

~~(A) (i) published in any county in which the political subdivision extends; and~~

~~(B) (ii) that has a general circulation in the political subdivision.~~

(3) If no newspaper is published within the boundaries of the political subdivision, by **publication publishing the notice** in two (2) **publications, consisting of either or both of the following:**

(A) A locality newspaper that circulates within the political subdivision.

(B) A newspapers newspaper that:

~~(A) (i) are is published in any counties into which the political subdivision extends; and~~

~~(B) (ii) have has a general circulation in the political subdivision.~~

(4) If only one (1) newspaper is published in any of the counties into which the political subdivision extends, by publication **of the notice in one (1) of the following:**

(A) A locality newspaper that circulates within the political subdivision.

(B) in that The newspaper published in the county if it the newspaper circulates within the political subdivision.

(f) A political subdivision may, in its discretion, publish public notices in a qualified publication or additional newspapers **or locality newspapers** to provide supplementary notification to the public. The cost of publishing supplementary notification is a proper expenditure of the political subdivision."

Page 3, delete lines 30 through 38, begin a new line block indented and insert:

"(1) Information disclosed under IC 5-14-3.7 or IC 5-14-3.8.

(2) Total operating budget.

(3) Approximate number of full-time and part-time employees.

(4) Outstanding indebtedness and interest paid on indebtedness.

(5) Disbursements.

(6) Assessed valuation and tax rates.

(7) Revenue from all sources."

Page 4, after line 10, begin a new paragraph and insert:
 "SECTION 11. IC 9-22-1-23, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012, SECTION 125, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 23. (a) This section applies to a city, town, or county.

(b) Except as provided in subsection (c), if the person who owns or holds a lien upon a vehicle does not appear within twenty (20) days after the mailing of a notice or the notification made by electronic service under section 19 of this chapter, the unit may sell the vehicle or parts by either of the following methods:

(1) The unit may sell the vehicle or parts to the highest bidder at a public sale. Notice of the sale shall be given under IC 5-3-1, except that only one (1) ~~newspaper~~ **insertion in an appropriate publication** one (1) week before the public sale is required.

(2) The unit may sell the vehicle or part as unclaimed property under IC 36-1-11. The twenty (20) day period for the property to remain unclaimed is sufficient for a sale under this subdivision.

(c) This subsection applies to a consolidated city or county containing a consolidated city. If the person who owns or holds a lien upon a vehicle does not appear within fifteen (15) days after the mailing of a notice or the notification made by electronic service under section 19 of this chapter, the unit may sell the vehicle or parts by either of the following methods:

(1) The unit may sell the vehicle or parts to the highest bidder at a public sale. Notice of the sale shall be given under IC 5-3-1, except that only one (1) newspaper insertion one (1) week before the public sale is required.

(2) The unit may sell the vehicle or part as unclaimed property under IC 36-1-11. The fifteen (15) day period for the property to remain unclaimed is sufficient for a sale under this subdivision.

SECTION 7. IC 16-18-2-301 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 301. "Publish" or "published" or "cause to be published", for purposes of IC 16-22, means publication of notice in ~~a newspaper; or newspapers;~~ **an appropriate publication** in accordance with IC 5-3-1, unless otherwise specified.

SECTION 8. IC 20-48-4-2, AS ADDED BY P.L.2-2006, SECTION 171, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) The board may authorize the trustee to issue township warrants or bonds to pay for the building or the proportional cost of it. The warrants or bonds:

- (1) may run for a period not exceeding fifteen (15) years;
- (2) may bear interest at any rate; and
- (3) shall be sold for not less than par.

The township trustee, before issuing the warrants or bonds, shall place a notice **in accordance with IC 5-3-1-4**, in at least one (1) ~~newspaper~~ **appropriate publication** announcing the sale of the bonds in at least one (1) issue a week for three (3) weeks. The notice must comply with IC 5-3-1 and must set forth the amount of bonds offered, the denomination, the period to run, the rate of interest, and the date, place, and time of selling. The township board shall attend the bond sale and must concur in the sale before the bonds are sold.

(b) The board shall annually levy sufficient taxes each year to pay at least one-fifteenth (1/15) of the warrants or bonds, including interest, and the trustee shall apply the annual tax to the payment of the warrants or bonds each year.

(c) A debt of the township may not be created except by the township board in the manner specified in this section. The board may bring an action in the name of the state against the bond of a trustee to recover for the use of the township funds expended in the unauthorized payment of a debt. The board may appropriate and the township trustee shall pay from township funds a reasonable sum for attorney's fees for this purpose.

(d) If a taxpayer serves the board with a written demand that the board bring an action as described in subsection (c), and after thirty (30) days the board has not brought an action, a taxpayer may bring an action to recover for the use of the township funds expended in the unauthorized payment of a debt. An action brought under this subsection shall be brought in the name of the state.

SECTION 9. IC 36-12-5-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.13-2013, SECTION 156, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The library board of a public library may file with the township trustee and legislative body a proposal of expansion and an intent to file a petition for acceptance of the proposal of expansion. Not later than ten (10) days after the filing, the township trustee shall publish notice of the proposal of expansion in the manner provided in IC 5-3-1. **Publication of the notice shall be in accordance with IC 5-3-1-4, in a newspaper an appropriate publication** of general circulation in the township. Beginning the first day after the notice is published, and during the period that ends sixty (60) days after the date of the publication of the notice, an individual who is a registered voter of the affected township or part of the affected township subject to expansion may sign one (1) or both of the following:

- (1) A petition for acceptance of the proposal of expansion that states that the registered voter is in favor of the establishment of an expanded library district.
- (2) A remonstrance in opposition to the proposal of expansion that states that the registered voter is opposed to the establishment of an expanded library district.

(b) A registered voter of the township or part of the township may file a petition or a remonstrance, if any, with the clerk of the circuit court in the county where the township is located. A petition for acceptance of the proposal of expansion must be signed by at least twenty percent (20%) of the registered voters of the township, or part of the township, as determined by the most recent general election.

(c) The following apply to a petition that is filed under this section or a remonstrance that is filed under subsection (b):

- (1) The petition or remonstrance must show the following:
 - (A) The date on which each individual signed the petition or remonstrance.
 - (B) The residence of each individual on the date the individual signed the petition or remonstrance.
- (2) The petition or remonstrance must include an affidavit of the individual circulating the petition or remonstrance, stating that each signature on the petition or remonstrance:
 - (A) was affixed in the individual's presence; and
 - (B) is the true signature of the individual who signed the petition or remonstrance.
- (3) Several copies of the petition or remonstrance may be executed. The total of the copies constitute a petition or remonstrance. A copy must include an affidavit described in subdivision (2). A signer may file the petition or remonstrance, or a copy of the petition or remonstrance. All copies constituting a petition or remonstrance must be filed on the same day.
- (4) The clerk of the circuit court in the county in which the township is located shall do the following:
 - (A) If a name appears more than one (1) time on a petition or on a remonstrance, the clerk must strike any duplicates of the name until the name appears only one (1) time on a petition or a remonstrance, or both, if the individual signed both a petition and a remonstrance.
 - (B) Strike the name from either the petition or the remonstrance of an individual who:
 - (i) signed both the petition and the remonstrance; and
 - (ii) personally, in the clerk's office, makes a voluntary written and signed request for the clerk to

strike the individual's name from the petition or the remonstrance.

(C) Certify the number of signatures on the petition and on any remonstrance that:

- (i) are not duplicates; and
- (ii) represent individuals who are registered voters in the township or the part of the township on the day the individuals signed the petition or remonstrance.

The clerk of the circuit court may only strike an individual's name from a petition or a remonstrance as set forth in clauses (A) and (B).

(d) The clerk of the circuit court shall complete the certification required under subsection (c) not more than fifteen (15) days after the petition or remonstrance is filed. The clerk shall:

- (1) establish a record of certification in the clerk's office; and
- (2) file the original petition, the original remonstrance, if any, and a copy of the clerk's certification with the legislative body."

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to SB 369 as printed January 23, 2015.) and when so amended that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: yeas 9, nays 0.

MAHAN, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Speaker: Your Committee on Government and Regulatory Reform, to which was referred Senate Bill 394, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the House with the recommendation that said bill do pass.

(Reference is to SB 394 as printed February 13, 2015.)

Committee Vote: Yeas 8, Nays 0.

MAHAN, Chair

Report adopted.

ENGROSSED SENATE BILLS ON SECOND READING

Engrossed Senate Bill 393

Representative Truitt called down Engrossed Senate Bill 393 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title.

HOUSE MOTION (Amendment 393-1)

Mr. Speaker: I move that Engrossed Senate Bill 393 be amended to read as follows:

Page 5, line 37, after "insurer" insert "for a policy year".

Page 5, line 39, delete "." and insert "by the surety or insurer for that policy year."

(Reference is to ESB 393 as printed March 17, 2015.)

LEHMAN

Motion prevailed.

HOUSE MOTION (Amendment 393-2)

Mr. Speaker: I move that Engrossed Senate Bill 393 be amended to read as follows:

Page 6, after line 24, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 4. IC 21-19-4-3, AS ADDED BY P.L.2-2007, SECTION 260, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) Before commencing duties as:

- (1) treasurer, the person appointed as treasurer of Ball State University; or
- (2) an employee of the treasurer, the employee;

shall give execute an official bond for the term of office or employment in an amount prescribed by the board of trustees: equal to at least ten million dollars (\$10,000,000).

(b) Ball State University may pay the cost of a bond required by this section.

SECTION 5. IC 21-20-4-2, AS ADDED BY P.L.2-2007, SECTION 261, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) Before commencing duties as the treasurer of Indiana University, the person appointed as treasurer shall give execute an official bond for the term of office in an amount equal to at least ten million dollars (\$10,000,000) and with surety approved by the board of trustees that is conditioned upon the faithful discharge of the treasurer's duties. The bond shall be:

- (1) payable to the state; and
- (2) filed with the auditor of state.

(b) Before commencing duties as an employee of the treasurer of Indiana University, the employee shall execute an official bond for the term of employment in an amount equal to at least ten million dollars (\$10,000,000). The bond shall be:

- (1) payable to the state; and
- (2) filed with the auditor of state.

(c) Indiana University may pay the cost of a bond required by this section.

SECTION 6. IC 21-21-4-4, AS ADDED BY P.L.2-2007, SECTION 262, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) The treasurer shall give a execute an official bond for the term of office in the an amount determined by the board equal to at least ten million dollars (\$10,000,000) before commencing the treasurer's duties.

(b) Before commencing duties as an employee of the treasurer, the employee shall execute an official bond for the term of employment in an amount equal to at least ten million dollars (\$10,000,000).

(c) Indiana State University may pay the cost of a bond required by this section.

SECTION 7. IC 21-22-4-5, AS ADDED BY P.L.2-2007, SECTION 263, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) Before commencing duties as the treasurer of Ivy Tech Community College, the person appointed as treasurer shall give a execute an official bond for the term of office in a penalty an amount equal to at least ten million dollars (\$10,000,000) and with surety to be approved by the state board of trustees, payable to the state, conditioned upon the faithful discharge of the treasurer's duties.

(b) Before commencing duties as an employee of the treasurer of Ivy Tech Community College, the employee shall execute an official bond for the term of employment in an amount equal to at least ten million dollars (\$10,000,000), payable to the state.

(c) Ivy Tech Community College may pay the cost of a bond required by this section.

SECTION 8. IC 21-23-4-5, AS ADDED BY P.L.2-2007, SECTION 264, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 5. (a) Before commencing duties as the treasurer, the person appointed as treasurer shall give a execute an official bond for the term of office to the state of Indiana in any sum not less than fifty thousand and an amount equal to at least ten million dollars (\$50,000) (\$10,000,000) for the faithful execution of the treasurer's trust, with sufficient sureties, as the board of trustees requires.

(b) Before commencing duties as an employee of the treasurer, the employee shall execute an official bond for the term of employment to the state of Indiana in an amount equal to at least ten million dollars (\$10,000,000).

(c) Purdue University may pay the cost of a bond required by this section.

SECTION 9. IC 21-24-4-2 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS

[EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 2. (a) Before commencing duties as:**

- (1) **treasurer, the person appointed as treasurer; or**
- (2) **an employee of the treasurer, the employee;**

shall execute an official bond for the term of office or employment in an amount equal to at least ten million dollars (\$10,000,000).

(b) The University of Southern Indiana may pay the cost of a bond required by this section.

SECTION 10. IC 21-25-4-4 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 4. (a) Before commencing duties as:**

- (1) **treasurer, the person appointed as treasurer; or**
- (2) **an employee of the treasurer, the employee;**

shall execute an official bond for the term of office or employment in an amount equal to at least ten million dollars (\$10,000,000).

(b) Vincennes University may pay the cost of a bond required by this section."

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to ESB 393 as printed March 17, 2015.)

GOODIN

Motion failed. The bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed Senate Bill 420

Representative Clere called down Engrossed Senate Bill 420 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title.

HOUSE MOTION
(Amendment 420-1)

Mr. Speaker: I move that Engrossed Senate Bill 420 be amended to read as follows:

Page 1, between the enacting clause and line 1, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 1. IC 5-1-16-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.99-2007, SECTION 11, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: **Sec. 1.** As used in this chapter:

"Authority" refers to the Indiana finance authority.

"Bonds" includes bonds, refunding bonds, notes, interim certificates, bond anticipation notes, and other evidences of indebtedness of the authority, issued under this chapter.

"Building" or "buildings" or similar words mean any building or part of a building or addition to a building for health care purposes. The term includes the site for the building (if a site is to be acquired), equipment, heating facilities, sewage disposal facilities, landscaping, walks, drives, parking facilities, and other structures, facilities, appurtenances, materials, and supplies that may be considered necessary to render a building suitable for use and occupancy for health care purposes.

"Cost" includes the following:

- (1) The cost and the incidental and related costs of the acquisition, repair, restoration, reconditioning, refinancing, or installation of health facility property.
- (2) The cost of any property interest in health facility property, including an option to purchase a leasehold interest.
- (3) The cost of constructing health facility property, or an addition to health facility property, acquiring health facility property, or remodeling health facility property.
- (4) The cost of architectural, engineering, legal, trustee, underwriting, and related services; the cost of the preparation of plans, specifications, studies, surveys, and estimates of cost and of revenue; and all other expenses necessary or incident to planning, providing, or determining the need for or the feasibility and practicability of health facility property.
- (5) The cost of financing charges, including premiums or prepayment penalties and interest accrued during the

construction of health facility property or before the acquisition and installation or refinancing of such health facility property for up to two (2) years after such construction, acquisition, and installation or refinancing and startup costs related to health facility property for up to two (2) years after such construction, acquisition, and installation or refinancing.

(6) The costs paid or incurred in connection with the financing of health facility property, including out-of-pocket expenses, the cost of any policy of insurance; the cost of printing, engraving, and reproduction services; and the cost of the initial or acceptance fee of any trustee or paying agent.

(7) The costs of the authority, incurred in connection with providing health facility property, including reasonable sums to reimburse the authority for time spent by its agents or employees in providing and financing health facility property.

(8) The cost paid or incurred for the administration of any program for the purchase or lease of or the making of loans for health facility property, by the authority and any program for the sale or lease of or making of loans for health facility property to any participating provider.

"County" means any county in the state that owns and operates a county hospital.

"Health facility property" means any tangible or intangible property or asset owned or used by a participating provider and which:

- (1) is determined by the authority to be necessary or helpful, directly or indirectly, to provide:
 - (A) health care;
 - (B) medical research;
 - (C) training or teaching of health care personnel;
 - (D) habilitation, rehabilitation, or therapeutic services; or
 - (E) any related supporting services;

regardless of whether such property is in existence at the time of, or is to be provided after the making of, such finding;

- (2) is a residential facility for:
 - (A) individuals with a physical, mental, or emotional disability;
 - (B) individuals with a physical or mental illness; or
 - (C) the elderly; or
- (3) is a licensed child caring institution providing residential care described in IC 12-7-2-29(1) or corresponding provisions of the laws of the state in which the property is located.

"Health facility" means any facility or building that is:

- (1) owned or used by a participating provider;
- (2) located:
 - (A) in Indiana; or
 - (B) outside Indiana, if the participating provider that operates the facility or building, or an affiliate of the participating provider, also operates a substantial health facility or facilities, as determined by the authority, in Indiana; and
- (3) utilized, directly or indirectly:
 - (A) in:
 - (i) health care;
 - (ii) habilitation, rehabilitation, or therapeutic services;
 - (iii) medical research;
 - (iv) the training or teaching of health care personnel; or
 - (v) any related supporting services;
 - (B) to provide a residential facility for:
 - (i) individuals with a physical, mental, or emotional disability;
 - (ii) individuals with a physical or mental illness; or

(iii) the elderly; or

(C) as a child caring institution and provides residential care described in IC 12-7-2-29(1) or corresponding provisions of the laws of the state in which the facility or building is located.

"Net revenues" means the revenues of a hospital remaining after provision for proper and reasonable expenses of operation, repair, replacement, and maintenance of the hospital.

"Participating provider" means a person, corporation, municipal corporation, political subdivision, or other entity, public or private, which:

(1) is located in Indiana or outside Indiana;

(2) contracts with the authority for the financing or refinancing of, or the lease or other acquisition of, health facility property that is located:

(A) in Indiana; or

(B) outside Indiana, if the financing, refinancing, lease, or other acquisition also includes a substantial component, as determined by the authority, for the benefit of a health facility or facilities located in Indiana;

(3) is:

(A) licensed under IC 12-25, IC 16-21, IC 16-28, or corresponding laws of the state in which the property is located;

(B) a regional blood center;

(C) a community mental health center or community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities center (as defined in IC 12-7-2-38 and IC 12-7-2-39 or corresponding provisions of laws of the state in which the property is located);

(D) an entity that:

(i) contracts with the division of disability and rehabilitative services or the division of mental health and addiction to provide the program described in IC 12-11-1.1-1(e) or IC 12-22-2; or

(ii) provides a similar program under the laws of the state in which the entity is located;

(E) a vocational rehabilitation center established under IC 12-12-1-4.1(a)(1) or corresponding provisions of the laws of the state in which the property is located;

(F) the owner or operator of a facility that is utilized, directly or indirectly, to provide health care, habilitation, rehabilitation, therapeutic services, medical research, the training or teaching of health care personnel, or any related supporting services, or of a residential facility for individuals with a physical, mental, or emotional disability, individuals with a physical or mental illness, or the elderly;

(G) a licensed child caring institution providing residential care described in IC 12-7-2-29(1) or corresponding provisions of the laws of the state in which the property is located;

(H) an integrated health care system between or among providers, a health care purchasing alliance, a health insurer or third party administrator that is a participant in an integrated health care system, a health maintenance or preferred provider organization, or a foundation that supports a health care provider; or

(I) an individual, a business entity, or a governmental entity that owns an equity or membership interest in any of the organizations described in clauses (A) through (H); and

(4) in the case of a person, corporation, municipal corporation, political subdivision, or other entity located outside Indiana, is owned or controlled by, under common control with, affiliated with, or part of an obligated group that includes an entity that provides one (1) or more of the following services or facilities in Indiana:

(A) A facility that provides:

(i) health care;

(ii) habilitation, rehabilitation, or therapeutic services;

(iii) medical research;

(iv) training or teaching of health care personnel; or

(v) any related supporting services.

(B) A residential facility for:

(i) individuals with a physical, mental, or emotional disability;

(ii) individuals with a physical or mental illness; or

(iii) the elderly.

(C) A child caring institution providing residential care described in IC 12-7-2-29(1).

"Regional blood center" means a nonprofit corporation or corporation created under 36 U.S.C. 1 that:

(1) is:

(A) accredited by the American Association of Blood Banks; or

(B) registered or licensed by the Food and Drug Administration of the Department of Health and Human Services; and

(2) owns and operates a health facility that is primarily engaged in:

(A) drawing, testing, processing, and storing human blood and providing blood units or components to hospitals; or

(B) harvesting, testing, typing, processing, and storing human body tissue and providing this tissue to hospitals."

Page 8, between lines 39 and 40, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 3. IC 6-1.1-18.5-10, AS AMENDED BY P.L.112-2012, SECTION 37, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 10. (a) The ad valorem property tax levy limits imposed by section 3 of this chapter do not apply to ad valorem property taxes imposed by a civil taxing unit to be used to fund:

(1) community mental health centers under:

(A) IC 12-29-2-1.2, for only those civil taxing units that authorized financial assistance under IC 12-29-1 before 2002 for a community mental health center as long as the tax levy under this section does not exceed the levy authorized in 2002;

(B) IC 12-29-2-2 through IC 12-29-2-5; and

(C) IC 12-29-2-13; or

(2) community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities centers under IC 12-29-1-1;

to the extent that those property taxes are attributable to any increase in the assessed value of the civil taxing unit's taxable property caused by a general reassessment of real property under IC 6-1.1-4-4 or a reassessment of real property under a reassessment plan prepared under IC 6-1.1-4-4.2 that took effect after February 28, 1979.

(b) For purposes of computing the ad valorem property tax levy limits imposed on a civil taxing unit by section 3 of this chapter, the civil taxing unit's ad valorem property tax levy for a particular calendar year does not include that part of the levy described in subsection (a).

(c) This subsection applies to property taxes first due and payable after December 31, 2008. Notwithstanding subsections (a) and (b) or any other law, any property taxes imposed by a civil taxing unit that are exempted by this section from the ad valorem property tax levy limits imposed by section 3 of this chapter may not increase annually by a percentage greater than the result of:

(1) the assessed value growth quotient determined under section 2 of this chapter; minus

(2) one (1).

(d) For a county that:

- (1) did not impose an ad valorem property tax levy in 2008 for the county general fund to provide financial assistance under IC 12-29-1 (community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities center) or IC 12-29-2 (community mental health center); and
- (2) determines for 2009 or a later calendar year to impose a levy as described in subdivision (1);

the ad valorem property tax levy limits imposed under section 3 of this chapter do not apply to the part of the county's general fund levy that is used in the first calendar year for which a determination is made under subdivision (2) to provide financial assistance under IC 12-29-1 or IC 12-29-2. The department of local government finance shall review a county's proposed budget that is submitted under IC 12-29-1-1 or IC 12-29-2-1.2 and make a final determination of the amount to which the levy limits do not apply under this subsection for the first calendar year for which a determination is made under subdivision (2).

(e) The ad valorem property tax levy limits imposed under section 3 of this chapter do not apply to the county's general fund levy in the amount determined by the department of local government finance under subsection (d) in each calendar year following the calendar year for which the determination under subsection (b) is made.

SECTION 4. IC 10-13-3-36, AS AMENDED BY P.L.121-2009, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 36. (a) The department may not charge a fee for responding to a request for the release of a limited criminal history record if the request is made by a nonprofit organization:

- (1) that has been in existence for at least ten (10) years; and
- (2) that:
 - (A) has a primary purpose of providing an individual relationship for a child with an adult volunteer if the request is made as part of a background investigation of a prospective adult volunteer for the organization;
 - (B) is a home health agency licensed under IC 16-27-1;
 - (C) is a community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities center (as defined in IC 12-7-2-39);
 - (D) is a supervised group living facility licensed under IC 12-28-5;
 - (E) is an area agency on aging designated under IC 12-10-1;
 - (F) is a community action agency (as defined in IC 12-14-23-2);
 - (G) is the owner or operator of a hospice program licensed under IC 16-25-3; or
 - (H) is a community mental health center (as defined in IC 12-7-2-38).

(b) Except as provided in subsection (d), the department may not charge a fee for responding to a request for the release of a limited criminal history record made by the department of child services or the division of family resources if the request is made as part of a background investigation of an applicant for a license under IC 12-17.2 or IC 31-27.

(c) The department may not charge a fee for responding to a request for the release of a limited criminal history if the request is made by a school corporation, special education cooperative, or nonpublic school (as defined in IC 20-18-2-12) as part of a background investigation of a prospective or current employee or a prospective or current adult volunteer for the school corporation, special education cooperative, or nonpublic school.

(d) As used in this subsection, "state agency" means an authority, a board, a branch, a commission, a committee, a department, a division, or another instrumentality of state government, including the executive and judicial branches of state government, the principal secretary of the senate, the

principal clerk of the house of representatives, the executive director of the legislative services agency, a state elected official's office, or a body corporate and politic, but does not include a state educational institution. The department may not charge a fee for responding to a request for the release of a limited criminal history if the request is made:

- (1) by a state agency; and
- (2) through the computer gateway that is administered by the office of technology established by IC 4-13.1-2-1.

(e) The department may not charge a fee for responding to a request for the release of a limited criminal history record made by the Indiana professional licensing agency established by IC 25-1-5-3 if the request is:

- (1) made through the computer gateway that is administered by the office of technology; and
- (2) part of a background investigation of a practitioner or an individual who has applied for a license issued by a board (as defined in IC 25-1-9-1).

(f) The department may not charge a church or religious society a fee for responding to a request for the release of a limited criminal history record if:

- (1) the church or religious society is a religious organization exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501 of the Internal Revenue Code;
- (2) the request is made as part of a background investigation of a prospective or current employee or a prospective or current adult volunteer; and
- (3) the employee or volunteer works in a nonprofit program or ministry of the church or religious society, including a child care ministry registered under IC 12-17.2-6.

(g) The department may not charge the school of education of a public or private postsecondary educational institution a fee for responding to a request for the release of a limited criminal history record if the request is made as part of a background investigation of a student before or after the student begins the student's field or classroom experience. However, the department may charge the student a fee for responding to a request for the release of a limited criminal history record."

Page 15, between lines 3 and 4, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 9. IC 12-7-2-39, AS AMENDED BY P.L.141-2006, SECTION 15, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 39. "Community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities centers", for purposes of IC 12-29 (except as provided in IC 12-29-3-6), means a program of services that meets the following conditions:

- (1) Is approved by the division of disability and rehabilitative services.
- (2) Is organized for the purpose of providing multiple services for persons with developmental disabilities.
- (3) Is operated by one (1) of the following or any combination of the following:
 - (A) A city, a town, a county, or another political subdivision of Indiana.
 - (B) An agency of the state.
 - (C) An agency of the United States.
 - (D) A political subdivision of another state.
 - (E) A hospital owned or operated by a unit of government described in clauses (A) through (D).
 - (F) A building authority organized for the purpose of constructing facilities to be leased to units of government.
 - (G) A corporation incorporated under IC 23-7-1.1 (before its repeal August 1, 1991) or IC 23-17.
 - (H) A nonprofit corporation incorporated in another state.
 - (I) A university or college.
- (4) Is accredited for the services provided by one (1) of

the following organizations:

- (A) The Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF), or its successor.
- (B) The Council on Quality and Leadership in Supports for People with Disabilities, or its successor.
- (C) The Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations (JCAHO), or its successor.
- (D) The National Commission on Quality Assurance, or its successor.
- (E) An independent national accreditation organization approved by the secretary."

Page 15, line 12, delete "disabilities," and insert **"disability,"**.

Page 16, between lines 22 and 23, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 19. IC 12-7-2-175 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 175. "Service provider", for purposes of IC 12-27, means any of the following:

- (1) A state institution.
- (2) A private psychiatric hospital licensed under IC 12-25.
- (3) A community mental health center.
- (4) A community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities center.
- (5) A service provider certified by the division of mental health and addiction to provide substance abuse treatment programs.
- (6) A service provider or program receiving money from or through a division.
- (7) Any other service provider, hospital, clinic, program, agency, or private practitioner if the individual receiving mental health services or developmental training was admitted without the individual's consent.
- (8) A managed care provider (as defined in ~~IC 12-7-2-127(b))~~ **IC 12-7-2-127**).

SECTION 20. IC 12-9-2-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.99-2007, SECTION 58, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 6. (a) The director may act for the division in entering into contracts for the disbursement of money and the providing of service for approved community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disability centers where constructed and operated or maintained by private nonprofit organizations, a local public agency, or any other state agency that the director determines to be best suited to advance programs for individuals with developmental disabilities.

(b) Before entering into a contract under this section, the director shall submit the contract to the attorney general for approval as to form and legality.

(c) A contract under this section must do the following:

- (1) Specify the services to be provided and the client populations to whom services must be provided.
- (2) Specify that the definition of developmental disability set forth in IC 12-7-2-61 must be used to determine the eligibility of an individual for reimbursement of the center by the division for the center's services for individuals with a developmental disability. The division shall reimburse the centers at rates established by rule.
- (3) Provide for a reduction in funding for failure to comply with terms of the contract."

Page 19, between lines 15 and 16, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 25. IC 12-11-1.1-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. The division may contract with:

- (1) community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities centers;
- (2) corporations; or
- (3) individuals;

that are approved by the division to provide the services

described in this chapter."

Page 20, between lines 12 and 13, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 28. IC 12-26-11-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. The superintendent of a facility to which an individual was committed under IC 12-26-6 or IC 12-26-7 or to which the individual's commitment was transferred under this chapter, may transfer the commitment of the individual to:

- (1) a state institution;
- (2) a community mental health center;
- (3) a community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities center;
- (4) a federal facility;
- (5) a psychiatric unit of a hospital licensed under IC 16-21;
- (6) a private psychiatric facility licensed under IC 12-25;
- (7) a community residential program for the developmentally disabled described in IC 12-11-1.1-1(e)(1) or IC 12-11-1.1-1(e)(2); or
- (8) an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded (ICF/MR) that is licensed under IC 16-28 and is not owned by the state;

if the transfer is likely to be in the best interest of the individual or other patients."

Page 20, between lines 32 and 33, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 30. IC 12-28-4-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.99-2007, SECTION 138, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. Residential facilities for individuals with a developmental disability must have sufficient qualified training and habilitation support staff so that the residential facility, regardless of organization or design, has appropriately qualified and adequately trained staff (not necessarily qualified ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** professionals (as defined in ~~42 CFR 442.401~~) **42 CFR 483.430**)) to conduct the activities of daily living, self-help, and social skills that are minimally required based on each recipient's needs and, if appropriate, for federal financial participation under the Medicaid program.

SECTION 31. IC 12-29-1-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.182-2009(ss), SECTION 299, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1. (a) The county executive of a county may authorize the furnishing of financial assistance to a community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities center that is located or will be located in the county.

(b) Assistance authorized under this section shall be used for the following purposes:

- (1) Constructing a center.
- (2) Operating a center.

(c) Upon request of the county executive, the county fiscal body may appropriate annually from the county's general fund the money to provide financial assistance for the purposes described in subsection (b). The appropriation may not exceed the amount that could be collected from an annual tax levy of not more than three and thirty-three hundredths cents (\$0.0333) on each one hundred dollars (\$100) of taxable property within the county.

(d) For purposes of this subsection, "first calendar year" refers to the first calendar year after 2008 in which the county imposes an ad valorem property tax levy for the county general fund to provide financial assistance under this chapter. If a county did not provide financial assistance under this chapter in 2008, the county for a following calendar year:

- (1) may propose a financial assistance budget; and
- (2) shall refer its proposed financial assistance budget for the first calendar year to the department of local government finance before the tax levy is advertised.

The ad valorem property tax levy to fund the budget for the first

calendar year is subject to review and approval under IC 6-1.1-18.5-10.

SECTION 32. IC 12-29-1-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 2. (a) If a community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities center is organized to provide services to at least two (2) counties, the county executive of each county may authorize the furnishing of financial assistance for the purposes described in section 1(b) of this chapter.

(b) Upon the request of the county executive of the county, the county fiscal body of each county may appropriate annually from the county's general fund the money to provide financial assistance for the purposes described in section 1(b) of this chapter. The appropriation of each county may not exceed the amount that could be collected from an annual tax levy of three and thirty-three hundredths cents (\$0.0333) on each one hundred dollars (\$100) of taxable property within the county.

SECTION 33. IC 12-29-1-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 3. (a) The county executive of each county whose residents may receive services from a community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities center may authorize the furnishing of a share of financial assistance for the purposes described in section 1(b) of this chapter if the following conditions are met:

- (1) The facilities for the center are located in a state adjacent to Indiana.
- (2) The center is organized to provide services to Indiana residents.

(b) Upon the request of the county executive of a county, the county fiscal body of the county may appropriate annually from the county's general fund the money to provide financial assistance for the purposes described in section 1(b) of this chapter. The appropriations of the county may not exceed the amount that could be collected from an annual tax levy of three and thirty-three hundredths cents (\$0.0333) on each one hundred dollars (\$100) of taxable property within the county.

SECTION 34. IC 12-29-1-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 4. (a) Bonds of a county may be issued for the construction and equipment or the improvement of a building to house a community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities center.

- (b) If services are provided to at least two (2) counties:
- (1) bonds of the counties involved may be issued to pay the proportionate cost of the project in the proportion determined and agreed upon by the fiscal bodies of the counties involved; or
 - (2) bonds of one (1) county may be issued and the remaining counties may annually appropriate to the county issuing the bonds amounts to be applied to the payment of the bonds and interest on the bonds in the proportion agreed upon by the county fiscal bodies of the counties involved.

SECTION 35. IC 12-29-1-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.141-2006, SECTION 78, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 7. (a) On the first Monday in October, the county auditor shall certify to:

- (1) the division of disability and rehabilitative services, for a community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** and other developmental disabilities center; and
- (2) the president of the board of directors of each center; the amount of money that will be provided to the center under this chapter.

(b) The county payment to the center shall be paid by the county treasurer to the treasurer of each center's board of directors in the following manner:

- (1) One-half (1/2) of the county payment to the center shall be made on the second Monday in July.
- (2) One-half (1/2) of the county payment to the center

shall be made on the second Monday in December.

(c) Payments by the county fiscal body are in place of grants from agencies supported within the county solely by county tax money."

Page 21, between lines 23 and 24, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 36. IC 16-18-2-163, AS AMENDED BY P.L.139-2014, SECTION 1, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 163. (a) "Health care provider", for purposes of IC 16-21 and IC 16-41, means any of the following:

(1) An individual, a partnership, a corporation, a professional corporation, a facility, or an institution licensed or legally authorized by this state to provide health care or professional services as a licensed physician, a psychiatric hospital, a hospital, a health facility, an emergency ambulance service (IC 16-31-3), a dentist, a registered or licensed practical nurse, a midwife, an optometrist, a pharmacist, a podiatrist, a chiropractor, a physical therapist, a respiratory care practitioner, an occupational therapist, a psychologist, a paramedic, an emergency medical technician, an advanced emergency medical technician, an athletic trainer, or a person who is an officer, employee, or agent of the individual, partnership, corporation, professional corporation, facility, or institution acting in the course and scope of the person's employment.

(2) A college, university, or junior college that provides health care to a student, a faculty member, or an employee, and the governing board or a person who is an officer, employee, or agent of the college, university, or junior college acting in the course and scope of the person's employment.

(3) A blood bank, community mental health center, community ~~mental retardation~~ **intellectual disability** center, community health center, or migrant health center.

(4) A home health agency (as defined in IC 16-27-1-2).

(5) A health maintenance organization (as defined in IC 27-13-1-19).

(6) A health care organization whose members, shareholders, or partners are health care providers under subdivision (1).

(7) A corporation, partnership, or professional corporation not otherwise qualified under this subsection that:

- (A) provides health care as one (1) of the corporation's, partnership's, or professional corporation's functions;
- (B) is organized or registered under state law; and
- (C) is determined to be eligible for coverage as a health care provider under IC 34-18 for the corporation's, partnership's, or professional corporation's health care function.

Coverage for a health care provider qualified under this subdivision is limited to the health care provider's health care functions and does not extend to other causes of action.

(b) "Health care provider", for purposes of IC 16-35, has the meaning set forth in subsection (a). However, for purposes of IC 16-35, the term also includes a health facility (as defined in section 167 of this chapter).

(c) "Health care provider", for purposes of IC 16-36-5 and IC 16-36-6, means an individual licensed or authorized by this state to provide health care or professional services as:

- (1) a licensed physician;
- (2) a registered nurse;
- (3) a licensed practical nurse;
- (4) an advanced practice nurse;
- (5) a certified nurse midwife;
- (6) a paramedic;
- (7) an emergency medical technician;
- (8) an advanced emergency medical technician; or
- (9) an emergency medical responder, as defined by section

109.8 of this chapter.

The term includes an individual who is an employee or agent of a health care provider acting in the course and scope of the individual's employment.

(d) "Health care provider", for purposes of IC 16-40-4, means any of the following:

(1) An individual, a partnership, a corporation, a professional corporation, a facility, or an institution licensed or authorized by the state to provide health care or professional services as a licensed physician, a psychiatric hospital, a hospital, a health facility, an emergency ambulance service (IC 16-31-3), an ambulatory outpatient surgical center, a dentist, an optometrist, a pharmacist, a podiatrist, a chiropractor, a psychologist, or a person who is an officer, employee, or agent of the individual, partnership, corporation, professional corporation, facility, or institution acting in the course and scope of the person's employment.

(2) A blood bank, laboratory, community mental health center, community ~~mental retardation intellectual disability~~ center, community health center, or migrant health center.

(3) A home health agency (as defined in IC 16-27-1-2).

(4) A health maintenance organization (as defined in IC 27-13-1-19).

(5) A health care organization whose members, shareholders, or partners are health care providers under subdivision (1).

(6) A corporation, partnership, or professional corporation not otherwise specified in this subsection that:

- (A) provides health care as one (1) of the corporation's, partnership's, or professional corporation's functions;
- (B) is organized or registered under state law; and
- (C) is determined to be eligible for coverage as a health care provider under IC 34-18 for the corporation's, partnership's, or professional corporation's health care function.

(7) A person that is designated to maintain the records of a person described in subdivisions (1) through (6).

(e) "Health care provider", for purposes of IC 16-45-4, has the meaning set forth in 47 CFR 54.601(a)."

Page 35, between lines 19 and 20, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 37. IC 31-34-18-1.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.145-2006, SECTION 307, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1.1. (a) The person preparing the report under section 1 of this chapter:

- (1) may; or
- (2) if directed by the court, shall;

confer with individuals who have expertise in professional areas related to the child's needs in the areas of appropriate care, treatment, rehabilitation, or placement for a child in need of services.

(b) A conference held under this section may include representatives of the following:

- (1) The child's school.
- (2) The probation department.
- (3) The department.
- (4) A community mental health center located in the child's county of residence.
- (5) A community ~~mental retardation intellectual disability~~ and other developmental disabilities center located in the child's county of residence.
- (6) Other persons as the court may direct.

SECTION 38. IC 31-37-17-1.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.145-2006, SECTION 340, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 1.1. (a) The person preparing the report under section 1 of this chapter:

- (1) may; or
- (2) if directed by the court, shall;

confer with individuals who have expertise in professional areas related to the child's needs in the areas of appropriate care, treatment, rehabilitation, or placement for a delinquent child.

(b) A conference held under this chapter may include representatives of the following:

- (1) The child's school.
- (2) The probation department.
- (3) The department.
- (4) A community mental health center located in the child's county of residence.
- (5) A community ~~mental retardation intellectual disability~~ and other developmental disabilities center located in the child's county of residence.
- (6) Other persons as the court may direct.

SECTION 39. IC 34-6-2-27 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 27. "Community ~~mental retardation intellectual disability~~ center", for purposes of IC 34-18, has the meaning set forth in IC 34-18-2-11.

SECTION 40. IC 34-18-2-11 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 11. "Community ~~mental retardation intellectual disability~~ center" means a public or private community ~~mental retardation intellectual disability~~ and other developmental disabilities center established under IC 12-29.

SECTION 41. IC 34-18-2-14, AS AMENDED BY P.L.232-2013, SECTION 23, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2015]: Sec. 14. "Health care provider" means any of the following:

- (1) An individual, a partnership, a limited liability company, a corporation, a professional corporation, a facility, or an institution licensed or legally authorized by this state to provide health care or professional services as a physician, psychiatric hospital, hospital, health facility, emergency ambulance service (IC 16-18-2-107), dentist, registered or licensed practical nurse, physician assistant, certified nurse midwife, optometrist, podiatrist, chiropractor, physical therapist, respiratory care practitioner, occupational therapist, psychologist, paramedic, advanced emergency medical technician, or emergency medical technician, or a person who is an officer, employee, or agent of the individual, partnership, corporation, professional corporation, facility, or institution acting in the course and scope of the person's employment.
- (2) A college, university, or junior college that provides health care to a student, faculty member, or employee, and the governing board or a person who is an officer, employee, or agent of the college, university, or junior college acting in the course and scope of the person's employment.
- (3) A blood bank, community mental health center, community ~~mental retardation intellectual disability~~ center, community health center, or migrant health center.
- (4) A home health agency (as defined in IC 16-27-1-2).
- (5) A health maintenance organization (as defined in IC 27-13-1-19).
- (6) A health care organization whose members, shareholders, or partners are health care providers under subdivision (1).
- (7) A corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or professional corporation not otherwise qualified under this section that:
 - (A) as one (1) of its functions, provides health care;
 - (B) is organized or registered under state law; and
 - (C) is determined to be eligible for coverage as a health care provider under this article for its health care function.

Coverage for a health care provider qualified under this subdivision is limited to its health care functions and does not extend to other causes of action."

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.
(Reference is to ESB 420 as printed March 20, 2015.)

CLERE

Motion prevailed. The bill was ordered engrossed.

**ENGROSSED SENATE BILLS
ON THIRD READING**

The Speaker yielded the gavel to the Speaker Pro Tempore, Representative Friend.

Representative Wolkins, who had been present, is now excused.

Engrossed Senate Bill 35

Representative Schaibley called down Engrossed Senate Bill 35 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning motor vehicles.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 317: yeas 96, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed Senate Bill 94

Representative Cherry called down Engrossed Senate Bill 94 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning criminal law and procedure.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 318: yeas 97, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed Senate Bill 313

Representative Kirchhofer called down Engrossed Senate Bill 313 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning criminal law and procedure.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 319: yeas 95, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed Senate Bill 318

Representative Truitt called down Engrossed Senate Bill 318 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning health.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 320: yeas 96, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

Representative Morrison, who had been present, is now excused.

Engrossed Senate Bill 336

Representative Cherry called down Engrossed Senate Bill 336 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning local government.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 321: yeas 96, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

Representatives Morrison and Wolkins who had been excused, are now present.

Engrossed Senate Bill 412

Representative Koch called down Engrossed Senate Bill 412 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning utilities.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 322: yeas 72, nays 26. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

The Speaker Pro Tempore yielded the gavel to the Speaker.

Engrossed Senate Bill 429

Representative Slager called down Engrossed Senate Bill 429 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning local government.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 323: yeas 87, nays 11. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed Senate Bill 433

Representative Lucas called down Engrossed Senate Bill 433 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning criminal law and procedure.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 324: yeas 85, nays 14. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed Senate Bill 506

Representative Soliday called down Engrossed Senate Bill 506 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning motor vehicles.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 325: yeas 96, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed Senate Bill 532

Representative McNamara called down Engrossed Senate Bill 532 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning property.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 326: yeas 97, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed Senate Bill 534

Representative Davisson called down Engrossed Senate Bill 534 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning professions and occupations.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 327: yeas 97, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed Senate Bill 546

Representative Negele called down Engrossed Senate Bill 546 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning health.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 328: yeas 77, nays 22. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Clerk was directed to inform the Senate of the passage of the bill.

HOUSE MOTION

Mr. Speaker: I move that when we do adjourn, we adjourn until Thursday, March 26, 2015, at 10:00 a.m.

FRIEND

The motion was adopted by a constitutional majority.

OTHER BUSINESS ON THE SPEAKER'S TABLE

MESSAGE FROM THE GOVERNOR

Mr. Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives: On March 24, 2015, I signed into law House Enrolled Act 1065.

MICHAEL R. PENCE
Governor

ENROLLED ACTS SIGNED

The Speaker announced that he had signed House Enrolled Act 1068 on March 24.

ENROLLED ACTS SIGNED

The Speaker announced that he had signed Senate Enrolled Acts 4, 26, 59, 171, 285, 289, 306, 434 and 437 on March 24.

HOUSE MOTION

Mr. Speaker: I move that Representative Zent be added as cosponsor of Engrossed Senate Bill 380.

SLAGER

Motion prevailed.

HOUSE MOTION

Mr. Speaker: I move that Representative Klinker be added as cosponsor of Engrossed Senate Bill 393.

TRUITT

Motion prevailed.

HOUSE MOTION

Mr. Speaker: I move that Representative Morrison be added as cosponsor of Engrossed Senate Bill 412.

KOCH

Motion prevailed.

HOUSE MOTION

Mr. Speaker: I move that Representative Porter be added as cosponsor of Engrossed Senate Bill 420.

CLERE

Motion prevailed.

HOUSE MOTION

Mr. Speaker: I move that House Rule 105.1 be suspended for the purpose of adding more than three cosponsors and that Representatives Smaltz, Arnold, Morrison and Eberhart be added as cosponsors of Engrossed Senate Bill 433.

LUCAS

The motion, having been seconded by a constitutional majority and carried by a two-thirds vote of the members, prevailed.

HOUSE MOTION

Mr. Speaker: I move that Representative Clere be added as cosponsor of Engrossed Senate Bill 441.

HUSTON

Motion prevailed.

HOUSE MOTION

Mr. Speaker: I move that Representative Klinker be added as cosponsor of Engrossed Senate Bill 546.

NEGELE

Motion prevailed.

HOUSE MOTION

Mr. Speaker: I move that Representatives Clere, Ubelhor, Nisly, Shackelford, Summers and Bartlett be added as coauthors of House Resolution 32.

MAHAN

Motion prevailed.

HOUSE MOTION

Mr. Speaker: I move that Representative Lucas be added as coauthor of House Concurrent Resolution 48.

BURTON

Motion prevailed.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

Mr. Speaker: I am directed by the Senate to inform the House that the Senate has passed Engrossed House Bills 1139, 1170 and 1186 with amendments and the same are herewith returned to the House for concurrence.

JENNIFER L. MERTZ
Principal Secretary of the Senate

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

Mr. Speaker: I am directed by the Senate to inform the House that the Senate has passed, without amendments, Engrossed House Bills 1140 and 1335 and the same are herewith returned to the House.

JENNIFER L. MERTZ
Principal Secretary of the Senate

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

Mr. Speaker: I am directed by the Senate to inform the House that the Senate has concurred in the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 101.

JENNIFER L. MERTZ
Principal Secretary of the Senate

Pursuant to House Rule 60, committee meetings were announced.

On the motion of Representative Huston, the House adjourned at 4:08 p.m., this twenty-fourth day of March, 2015, until Thursday, March 26, 2015, at 10:00 a.m.

BRIAN C. BOSMA
Speaker of the House of Representatives

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House of Representatives